FREQUENTLY ASKED LABOR QUESTIONS

Updated December 2005
SCA QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS
1:  I've heard that I can access SCA WDs on the Internet. How?

A:  SCA WDs can be accessed at www.wdol.gov.  After answering several pertinent questions, the WDOL program site will issue the appropriate WD for the vast majority of SCA-covered contracts for all localities.  However, if you have a unique procurement for which DOL has created a contract specific WD, those are not available on the WDOL site.  For these unique contracts and WDs an electronic SF98 must be submitted to obtain the most current revision of the WD (the “e-98” can be accessed at www.wdol.gov).

2:  I can't find an Elevator Repairer on our standard Wage Determination. What should I use?

A:  Some non-standard WDs can be found at the WDOL.gov website. Elevator Repairer is on a separate WD just for elevator maintenance services. Click on the “Selecting SCA WD” portion of the home page and after answering two preliminary questions review the list of non-standard WDs. Then highlight “Elevator Services” on the menu and click on the YES button to access the WD.

3:  Can I use the WDOL.gov website when there is a collective bargaining agreement (CBA)?

A:  Yes!  Answering the questions properly at that website will prompt you to either: create a new “CBA WD” (select the “Continue” button and enter required information); or revise a CBA WD previously created at WDOL.gov (select the “Get CBA WD” button if the previous CBA WD number began with “CBA” –Example--“CBA-2005-1234”). “Get CBA WD” will show you the existing CBA WD –below that box select the “Revise CBA WD” button to edit only the information that has changed (new contractor, new CBA date, new CBA supplement, etc.). The CBA is no longer submitted to DOL and the paper SF98/98A is scheduled to be eliminated. While DOL’s e-98 system may also be used to obtain a CBA based WD it’s easier to create and issue a CBA WD at WDOL.gov. For new solicitations an information copy of the CBA should be made available to bidders since the CBA-based WD will not contain the wage and fringe benefit rates, but only a reference to the CBA.

CAUTION!  While this makes it much easier for the Contracting Officer one should not abrogate their duties to perform a detailed review of the CBA.  A Contracting Officer must know what the contents of the CBA -- especially the wage and fringe benefit rates, and whether they are reasonable—after all the Air Force will likely be paying these increases through a SCA price adjustment.
 

4:  My new contractor just submitted a conformance request to me for processing. The SF1444 lists proposed classifications and rates, the correct contract WD, and signatures of affected employees. I can't find anything even close when I compare the contractor's position descriptions to the SCA Directory of Occupations, and the positions don't seem to be of the exempt type. What do I do, now?

A:  You're in great shape, so far! Ask your civilian personnel office to assist you in determining federal grade equivalents (FGEs) for the classifications involved. List the classifications and FGEs in a cover letter to DOL's national office, and make a recommendation with respect to approval or disapproval. Be sure to attach the SF1444s and all supporting materiel submitted by the contractor, as well as adding any material that supports your recommendation. Also, it's a good idea to touch base with your AF Regional Labor Advisor when you first receive a conformance request.

5:  I'm processing my first SCA price adjustment claim after incorporating a new WD. Where can I find guidance?

A:  The most detailed guide on processing price adjustments, the SCA Price Adjustment Guide  is maintained on this website. Contact your AF Regional Labor Advisor if the guide doesn't answer all of your questions. 

6:  The WD wage rates didn't change at option start, but the contractor submitted a claim for reimbursement of increased Workers Compensation rates. Is this an authorized SCA price adjustment?

A:  No!  Paragraph '(d)' of the clause at FAR 52-222-43 ,for SCA price adjustment authorizes increases for Workers Compensation, FICA, and Unemployment Taxes only to the extent those increases accompany (are the result of) a WD wage increase. When incorporation of a new or revised SCA WD does force an increase in wage rates, the most recent workers compensation insurance rate(s) is then factored against the amount of wage increase, only--not the full wage rate. See the SCA Price Adjustment Guide.

7:  I’m working on a solicitation for an A-76 Comparison Study.  Which Standard Area Wage Determination applies to the solicitation of new procurements -- the odd-numbered AWD (with the fringe benefits paid per employee) or the even-numbered AWD (with the fringe benefits minimum payment calculated as an average cost for all service employees)? 

A:  The DOL had a significant rule change in 1997.  For any new procurement for which the standard AWD is appropriate, the odd- numbered AWD must be used.  The even-numbered (“average cost”) AWD is used only under DOL’s “grandfather” rule that requires its continued use in older contracts that have historically used it.  This “grandfather” rule includes not only options and extensions, but also recompetitons for similar services performed in the same locality.  See 29 CFR 4.52.

8:  When I obtain a wage determination from WDOL, am I still required to submit a SF98 per FAR 22.1007?

A:  No.  You do not need to submit a SF98 since you already have the WD in hand, however, if your contracting office management request a SF98 for each contract by all means do so.  DOL is in the process of revising their SCA regulations to eliminate paper SF98 submittals and allow contracting personnel to obtain WD’s at WDOL.gov without submitting anything to DOL. FAR 22.1007 will be revised to reflect those changes, but the revisions may take a while.  In the meantime, both DOL and DOD acquisition officials at the highest level have sanctioned use of the WDOL site in lieu of submitting an SF98 for most contracts.  Note the answer to question number 1, advising that for some unique procurements and WDs, an SF98 must still be submitted.  The “e-98” that can be accessed at www.wdol.gov is recommended when an SF98 is needed.

9:  What is the purpose of the clause at FAR 52.222.42 Statement of Equivalent Rates?

A:  The requirement is for informational purposes only and should not be confused with the rates required by the wage determination. Federal employee equivalents are now published in the SCA Directory of Occupations.  If the FGEs for work classifications are not obvious or listed on the SCA Directory of Occupations index, then a list of civil service classifications should be obtained from the using organization.  These would be the work classifications that the using organization would hire directly if performed by “in house” WG or GS employees.  The current wage rate for the classifications can be found at the Civilian Personnel Management web site (for WG positions) and at the OPM site (for GS positions).  FAR 22.1016 requires step 2 for WD positions and step 1 for GS positions.  The fringe benefit factor for all classifications is 32.85% (of the wage rate) based on detailed studies and as contained in OMB Circular A-76.  Note -- this is not a Wage Determination and should not be treated as such by either the contractor or the Air Force.

10:  Is carpet laying subject to SCA or DBA?

A:  It depends! When performed alone with government furnished or previously purchased carpet, recarpeting of existing buildings is subject to SCA, and may include some incidental tile work (restrooms & entry area for example). If the carpet laying is incidental to purchasing carpet and included in the cost of the carpet, then only Walsh-Healey applies. If the carpet laying is part of a building renovation project or new construction, DBA must apply. 

11:  Why don’t we just put the Service Contract Act provisions in all service contracts?   That would be much easier than figuring out which ones should include SCA and which ones should not.

A:  Three reasons:

(1)  The Contracting Officer is required to make the initial determination with respect to coverage.  Application of SCA provisions when not prescribed by FAR is a violation of FAR;  

(2) The SCA provisions and wage determination requirements are “labor intensive” for contracting personnel to administer; and  

(3) the SCA provisions and wage determination could increase the cost of the contract.  Regarding contract administration – not only is it necessary to update the wage determinations in the contract at least annually, it also will be necessary to review, analyze, and modify contract prices under the SCA Price Adjustment clause.  

Regarding the contract price – since most service contracts are mostly about “manpower”, any increases to SCA wage determinations usually have a direct impact on an otherwise “fixed price” contract.  

12.  I have a service solicitation for repair and the place of performance is unknown.  May I issue the solicitation that contains the Service Contract Act provisions, but does not contain a wage determination?  

A:  Yes, but only if the procedures outlined in FAR 22.1009 are used and a wage determination is incorporated into the solicitation by amendment when the place of performance has been determined.  This will also require the use of contract clause FAR 52.222-49 that provides instructions to offers regarding subsequent identification of the place(s) of performance and advising them wage determination(s) will be placed into the contract.

If the place of performance is known, a wage determination should be placed into the solicitation when it is initially issued.  Since the date of contract award and the date when contract performance will begin, control which “revision” of the wage determination is to be included in the contract; it is not appropriate to simply advise offerors to obtain a wage determination from the www.WDOL.gov website.  There are a number of variables that determine which wage determination is applicable to a given procurement and often those variables are known only by the government procurement official.  Therefore, all SCA-covered solicitations should contain the specific wage determination that will apply to the first period of performance. 

DBA QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS
13:  I work in a construction buying branch and have a requirement to refinish wood floors. Isn't that a service?

A:  No.  Floor refinishing (including bowling alley lanes) is considered repair /renovation under the labor standards, and is subject to DBA. DBA is also required for: painting (other than minor touch-up after routine maintenance); carpet installation (when part of initial construction or general renovation); concrete sealant application; and removal of rubber deposits from runways.

 

14:  For my Military Family Housing solicitation, do I need to include Davis-Bacon Act coverage for any tasks?

A:  Yes, unless you have made all repair and painting work 'out-of-scope' to be performed under a separate contract. FAR 22.402(b) requires DBA coverage under contracts principally for services that also require substantial and segregable amounts of construction, alteration and repair of public buildings and public works. When it is not clear whether the work is SCA-covered or DBA-covered, DFARS 222.402-70 provides further clarification. Note that the DFARS 'work hours test' should only be used if it is unclear whether the work required is SCA-covered maintenance or DBA-covered construction, alteration, or repair. Usually DBA coverage can be easily be determined and applied to entire line items such as painting, roof repair, floor repair, etc., referencing DFARS guidelines only for line items requiring both SCA-type and DBA-type work. This guidance also applies to O&M and BOS contracts requiring both types of work. 

 

15:  How can I get DBA wage determinations through the Internet?

A:  Davis-Bacon wage determinations are directly available at www.wdol.gov.  Then just follow the menu to obtain the WD for the geographic area where the work will be performed and the type of construction being performed (“building”, “heavy”, “highway”, or “residential”.  Note that in some localities there are multiple “heavy” WDs and you will need to obtain the one for your specific project type – i.e. “bridge and tunnel work”, “well drilling”, “pipeline”, “water and sewer”, etc.  If you have difficulty determining which heavy schedule to use, your Regional Labor Advisors Office can help.

16:  Can I use the 'Residential' WD for a contract for street repair in the family housing area?

A:  No.  Street repair falls under the 'Highway' WD, no matter where the streets are located.  See U.S. Department of Labor All Agency Memorandum #130.

17:  What do I use for a contract to renovate a building and replace the utility 'runs'--the Building WD or Heavy WD?

A:  If the work in the lesser category is more than 20% of the project, you must incorporate WDs for both parts of the contract. Even if the lesser part is under 20% of the project, it may make sense to voluntarily incorporate a second WD for that effort – to avoid conformance of classifications not listed on the other WD, for example.  When two or more WDs are incorporated, you must state in the solicitation the portions of the work covered by the each WD – See FAR 22.404-2 (a) & (b) and DOL’s AAM #131.  (It is not appropriate to include more than one WD where the contract does not require two (or more) types of work simply because a particular classification is not listed on the proper WD.  See the answer to number 18).

18:  I opened sealed bids, but a protest delayed award for 9 weeks. Do I have to update the DBA WD prior to award?

A:  Not if you award within 90 days of bid opening -- FAR 22.404-6(b)(6).  But, there is a different rule for negotiated contracts--see paragraph (c) of that cite.

19:  Do I have to update the DBA WD in my contract, like we do under contracts covered by the Service Contract Act?

A:  It depends on the type of contract -- refer to FAR 22.404-12.  If the contract includes one or more options to extend the term of the contract, then the most current WD must be incorporated at the beginning of each option period.  It may also require an adjustment to the contract price depending on which  FAR clause (52.222-30,31, or 32) was included in the solicitation and contract.  However, if it is a “fixed” project with no option to extend the term (such as – construction of a new guard post) -- then there is no requirement to update the wage determination -- the WD in the contract at award will be valid for the life of the contract regardless of the amount of time it takes to complete the project.

20:  A large 'Heavy' category contract contains only the 'Heavy' WD. There is no 'Painter' classification listed. Can the contractor use the 'Painter' rate from the 'Building' WD? 

A:  No.  Any additional classifications must be 'conformed' after award by SF1444 submitted to DOL (FAR 22.406-3).  However, if painting is the majority of work under the contract, the contracting officer must submit an SF308 'Request for Project Wage Determination' to DOL prior to solicitation to obtain a rate. Conformance after award would place too much risk on the contractor.

21:  I am issuing an IDIQ solicitation for roofing, however, the building WD does not list a “Roofer” classification.  What do I do?

A:  Since the missing classification is the principal or only work that will be performed on the project, a project wage determination should be requested from the DOL and provided to bidders of offerors prior to receipt of bids or final proposals.  The form for requesting a project wage determination (SF308) can be found on the AF Labor Advisors web site.  Your Regional Labor Advisors Office can help you pursue a timely response.  See FAR 22.404-3(b) & (c).  See Q & A #18 also.

22:  My contractor submitted a conformance request for work not covered by the contract WD. How do I know if the rate is reasonable and will be approved by DOL? 

A:  While there is no guarantee, it helps to know DOL's procedures. DOL will normally approve a rate proposed for a skilled trade if the work is not covered by any WD classification, and the rate proposed is at least equal to the lowest WD total rate for a skilled classification. Find the lowest total rate (wage plus fringe benefits) listed on the WD for a 'skilled' trade--don't consider rates for Laborers, Tenders/Helpers, Truck Drivers, or Power Equipment Operators. If the proposed rate meets or exceeds that rate, consider it reasonable and recommend approval to DOL.

 

23:  The contract WD lists a fringe benefit percentage and then a fringe benefit amount for one of the crafts. Is the percentage computed on the basic hourly rate of pay or on the fringe benefit amount?

A:  A percentage is always computed on the basic hourly rate of pay, whether it's listed before or after the fringe benefit amount.  For example, the wage determination for “Electrician” list a wage rate of $20.00 per hour and fringe benefits of $4.00 + 3%.  The total rate (wage and fringe combined) required is $24.60 calculated as follows:  $20.00 + $4.00 + $.60 ($20.00 x .03) = $24.60

24:  Do contractors have to pay fringe benefits on overtime hours?

A:  Yes. The same fringe benefit amount is required for OT hours as for straight-time hours, but there is never an overtime premium owed on the fringe benefit payment even if it is paid as additional wages (“cash”). Multiply the wage rate by time and one half, and then add fringe benefits. Example: An employee is paid a wage rate of $20/hour and $10/hour for fringe benefits. The appropriate OT wage rate would be $30 ($20 x 1.5). Total hourly compensation for all hours over 40 would be $30 + $10 = $40.

25:  We're supposed to be 'streamlining' government contracting. Why do contractors still have to submit certified payrolls?

A:  Certified payrolls are required by the Copeland (Anti Kickback) Act. DOL was challenged when it tried to delete the requirement, administratively, in 1983. The Appeals Court held that it was a statutory requirement that only Congress can lift.

26:  What do I do when the contractor's certified payroll lists apprentices?

A:  You'll need a copy of the documents showing that the employee is individually registered with DOL's Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer, and Labor Services (OATELS) (formerly Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training) --or with a state apprenticeship agency, in some states.  These documents should also show the apprentices progress (“stage”) in the program.  You'll also need portions of the approved apprenticeship program showing (1) the percentage of the journeyman rate an apprentice in each stage must receive, and (2) the allowable apprentice-journeyman ratio for that program. 

27.  I have received complaints from individual construction employees working for a subcontractor on a Davis-Bacon Act-covered project, isn’t it Department of Labor’s (DOL) responsibility to enforce the DBA requirements in this situation?

A:  Not necessarily.  Here’s why.  FAR 22.406-7 states in part “…The Contracting Officer shall make checks and investigations on all contracts covered by this subpart…”  Compliance with the “labor standards” provisions is a contract compliance issue as well as a statutory requirement.  Therefore, review of certified payroll, conducting labor checks (including job site interviews), and otherwise investigating underpaid (or unpaid) wage complaints is primarily the CO’s responsibility.  If and when you need advice and assistance, your Regional Labor Advisor’s Office can help.  Sometimes this help may include a request that DOL investigate the allegations since they have the authority to investigate such complaints.  However, it is the prerogative of DOL to become actively involved (or not) in DBA investigations.  Such complaints, therefore, should never be ignored by the CO.
